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September 20, 2007

The Honorable Togiola Tulafono
Governor of American Samoa

The Basic Financial Statements of the Territory of American Samoa (the Territory) for the fiscal year
2006 are submitted herewith. These financial statements were prepared by the Treasury Department.
Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report. The report is prepared to show the financial position and operating results of the
Territory. We believe the data presented is accurate in all material respects and that all disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain a reasonable understanding of the Territory’s financial activities
have been included in this report.

Independent Audit

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America which are applicable to governmental entities. The Territory requires an
annual audit of all financial records and transactions by an independent Certified Public Accountant.
Additionally, an audit of federal financial assistance is required. This Single Audit report of Federal
Financial Assistance is issued under separate cover,

Method of Presentation

In addition to the govemment-wide financial statements, the Territory has prepared fund financial
statements, which continue to use the modified accrual basis of accounting and the current financial
resources measurement focus. Accordingly, the accounting and financial reporting for the Territory's
General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds, and Debt Service Funds is similar to that
previously presented in the Temitory®s financial statements.

The report is divided into an Introductory Section, a Financial Section, and a Statistical Section. The
Introductory Section provides information on the general contents of the report. The Financial Section

is comprised of Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Government-Wide Financial Statements
(Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities) and the Fund Financial Statements that present
funds by fund type to provide an overview of the Territorial financial position and results of operations,
and reconciliations of the Government-Wide Financial Statements to the Fund Financial Statements.
The Statistical Section provides various financial, economic and demographic data about the Territory.



Reporting Entity

American Samoa is an unincorporated Territory of the United States and operates under the jurisdiction
of the United States Interior Department. A Constitution was adopted in 1966, and in 1977 the
Secretary of Interior provided for the election by popular vote of a Governor and Lieutenant Governor.
The members of the Territory’s House of Representatives are also elected by popular vote, while its
senators are chosen by village councils.

The Territory is a group of islands in the Pacific Ocean just south of the Equator, approximately 2600
miles south of the Hawaiian Islands and 1800 miles north of New Zealand. The seat of government is
located near Pago Pago Harbor on the island of Tutuila. The Territory has an estimated population of
57.663.

For financial reporting purposes, the Territorial reporting entity consists of’ (1) the primary government,
(2) component unit organizations for which the govemment is financially accountable and (1) other
component unit organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
pnmary government 15 such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete, The funds of all agencies, boards, commissions, foundations and authorities
that have been identified as part of the primary government or as a component unit are included in this

report.

The Temtory provides & range of services in the areas of agriculture, education, health and social
services, public safety, law enforcement, judicial systems, economic development, conservation and
natural resources, utility systems and general administration.

Major Initiatives
Accounting System and Budgetary Control

The Territory’s fund financial statements for general govemment operations and agency funds were
prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. The modified accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues when they become both
measurable and available to finance operations throughout the fiscal vear, or to liquidate liabilities at the
end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are recognized when a liability is incurred except principal and
interest on long term debt for which liabilities are recorded when due or when amounts have been
accumulated in the debt service fund for payments to be made immediately in the following fiscal vear.
The proprietary and pension trust funds are accounted for on the accrual basis. A summary of the
significant accounting policies and other necessary disclosures are included in the notes 1o the financial
statements.

The Government adopts an annual budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting for governmental
type funds and on the accrual basis for proprietary type funds. Budgetary controls are used 1o ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget passed by the Legislature
(FONO) and approved by the Govemor prior to the beginning of the fiscal year. If the appropriations
are nol sufficient for a fiscal year, supplemental amounts are requested during the next legislative
session by the same process as the original appropriations, Budgetary control is maintained at the
departmental level. Unexpended appropriations lapse at the end of each appropriation year except for
project length capital improvement projects and grants controlled by guidelines issued by the agencies of
the United States Government.



Encumbrance accounting under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve part of the appropriation is employed for purposes
of budgetary control and contract compliance. Encumbrances at vear end do not constitute expenditures
or liabilities.

Cash Management

In November 1997, a cash management system was implemented. All cash not legally required to be in
separate accounts is pooled for operations. The purpose of the system is to provide greater internal
control of cash, and to maximize the amount available for investment purposes, thereby increasing
investment revenues. Zero balance disbursement accounts are used and funded from a central
depository account. All funds in excess of a compensating balance for bank services provided are
invested in Certificate of Deposits. Negative (deficit) equity in pooled cash is shown as a lability;
payable to treasurer's pooled cash. .

Risk Management
The Territory currently assumes substantially all risks associated with the following:

 Liability claims against the Territory or its agencies resulting from property or operation of
motor vehicles and watercrafi.

o Claims of employees for medical expenses.

» Liability claims actionable under the law that parties may file against the Teritory, its
officials, employees or appointees.

Acknowledgments

We wish 1o express our sincere appreciation 1o the staff of the various Territorial agencies and
organizational units, who provided necessary financial information, Special recognition is given to the
Finance Staff and TOFR Office whose efforts are primarily responsible for the CAFR preparation. We
also thank the Auditing Staff of RC Holsinger & Associates for their technical assistance in the
preparation of these Basic Financial Statements.

Sincerely,
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Velega Saval, Ir. Ueligitone Pele Tonumaipe’a
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT ON
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Govemor of the Territory of American Samoa
Pago Pago, Amencan Samoa

We have audited the accompanying Statement of Net Assets, Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds,
Reconciliation of the Statement of Net Assets to the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds, Statement of
Net Assets - Proprietary Funds, and Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Fund, of the Temritory
of American Samoa (the “Territory™) at September 30, 2006. These financial statemenis are the
responsibility of the Temritory’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the following
fiduciary fund and component units:

# American Samoa Government Employee Retirement Fund, a fiduciary fund, which statement
reflects assets comprising 100 percent of total assets at September 30, 2006 of the related
Fiduciary Fund Pension Trust totals and 100 percent of the additions to the plan asszets of the
Fiduciary Fund Types - Pension Trust for the vear then ended.

# American Samoa Power Authority, American Samoa Community College, and Amencan Samoa
Telecommunications Authority, which statements reflect 88.53 percent of assets and 83,315
percent of operating revenues of discretely presented component units.

The financial statements of the Amencan Samoa Power Authority, American Samoa Community
College, and American Samoa Telecommunications Authority, were audited by other auditors whose
reports thereon have been fumnished to us, and in our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for them, is based solely upon the reports of the other auditors.

Except as discussed in the following six paragraphs, we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to the
financial audits contained in Gevernment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit and the reporis of other auditors provides reasonable basis for our opinion. The financial
statements of the American Samoa Govemment Employvee Fetirement Fund were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards by their auditors.



We were unable to verify the accuracy of Due To/Form Other Funds - Pooled Cash due to an inability to
rely on the internal control system.

We were unable to verify the accuracy of the physical inventory records as of September 30, 2006 since
the Territory did not maintain adequate perpetual records to verify the quantities and value of inventory.

We were unable to obtain and test supporting detail schedules of the immigration depesits that are
received and recorded by the Territory’s Attorney General.

We were engaged to audit the Territory's financial statements for the vear ended September 30, 2006:
however the system of financial accounting and reporting in operation for the Territory for the year
ended September 30, 2006 was inadequate. There were significant failures in the internal control
structure related to general accounting and grants administration. We noted evidence of a failure of
identified controls in preventing or detecting misstatements of accounting information and a lack of
appropriate management oversight and review and approval of transactions. The Territory had difficulty
in locating documentation supporting some accounting records resulting in significant adjustments to
various accounts. Adequate evidential matter in support of various recorded transactions was not
provided. It was impracticable to extend our procedures sufficiently to determine the extent to which
these conditions have affected the financial statements as of and for the years ended September 30,
2006. The Balance Sheet accounts at September 30, 2006 enter into the determination of excess of
expenses and other uses over revenues and other sources for the year ended September 30, 2006.

As more fully discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements of the American Samoa
Telecommunications Authority, property, plant, and equipment is reported on the balance sheets based
on the estimates of an outside consultant. In the American Samoa Telecommunications Authority’s
auditor’s opinion, property, plant, and equipment should be recorded at cost to conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, the American Samoa
Telecommunications Authority’s auditor’s opinion indicated there was a lack of supporting
documentation for materials and supplies reported in the financial statements. They also noted that the
Authority has not adequately tracked and reconciled the material and supplies activity including the
material being received and reimbursed by FEMA in a timely and accurate manner during 2006.

Because of the matter discussed in the preceding five paragraphs, the scope of our work was not
sufficient to enable us 1o express, and we do not express, an opinion on the Statement of Activities,
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds,
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities, Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Funds, Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds and Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Fund for the year ended September 30, 2006.

In our opinion, based upon our audit and the reports of the other auditors, except for:

= the effects on the basic purpose financial statements, if any, as might have been determined o be
necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves about:

i.  the amount of the Due to/from Other Funds - Pooled Cash as discussed in paragraph
five of this report;
ii.  the accuracy of physical inventory records;
ni.  the balance of immigration bond deposits received and recorded;
iv.  the accuracy of the beginning fund balances as described in paragraph seven of this

report.



s the effects on the discretely presented component units, if any, as might have been determined to
be necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves about:

i. the financial position and activity of the American Samoa Telecommunication
Authority as discussed in paragraph eight of this report.

the Statement of Net Assets, Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds, Reconciliation of the Statement of
Net Assets to the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds, Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds and
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-like activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Terntory of American Samoa as
of September 30, 2006, are fairly stated in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 20,
2007, on our consideration of the Termtory of American Samoa's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 12 and budgetary comparison
information on pages 55 through 56 are not a required part of the basic financial statements bul are
supplementary information required by the Government Accounting Standard Board. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did
not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Territory’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and statistical
section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial
statements. The introductory section and statistical section of this report have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied by us and other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

(& ﬁt\dmwmm,m.

Wexford, Pennsylvani
September 20, 2007
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Our discussion and analysis of the Territory of American Samoa’s (the “Territory”) financial
performance provides an overview of the Territory’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006, Please read it in conjunction with the Territory's financial statements, which
follow this section. Fiscal year 2005 comparative information has been included, where appropriate,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, the Territory's total net assets of the primary
government increased by $5,082,265 or 2.3% from the prior year.

* During the year, the Temtory's expenses for governmental activities were $183,737,651 and
were funded by program revenues of $116,349,096 and further funded with taxes, grants and
other general revenues that totaled $71,217 451,

* In the Termitory's business-type activities, which include the airport and industrial park, program
revenues, including grants, exceeded program expenses by $157,327.

* At September 30, 2006, the General Fund reported total fund balance of $10,263,024 of which
51,419,056 is reserved and 38,843,968 is unreserved representing an increase of $779,126 from
the prior yvear total fund balance of §9,483,898.

*  For budgetary reporting purposes, the General Fund reported revenues better than final estimates
of 85,634,981 or 7.5%, while expenditures exceeded final appropriations by $13,908.571 or
18.4%.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements presented herein include, to the extent information was available, all of the
activities of the Temtory of American Samoa (the “Territory™) and its included component units using
the integrated approach as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34, Inecluded in this report are
govemnmental-wide statements for each of two categories of activities — governmental and business-type,
along with a separate category for discretely-presented component units. The government-wide financial
statements present the most complete financial picture of the Territory from the economic resources
measuremnent focus using the accrual basis of accounting. They present governmental activities and
business type activities separately and combined. These statements include all assets of the Territory
(including infrastructure capital assets) as well as all liabilities (including all long-term debt).

Reporting the Territory as a Whole
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statemnent of Activities

One of the most frequently asked questions about the Territory's finances is, “Has the Temritory’s overall
financial condition improved, declined or remained steady over the past year?™ The Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the Territory as a whole and about its
activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements, 1o the extent possible, include all
assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. In addition, to the extent possible, all of the
current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.



TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

These two government-wide statements report the Territory’s net assets and changes in them from the
prior year. You can think of the Territory’s net assets - the difference between assets and liabilities - as
one way to measure the Territory”s financial condition, or position. Over time, increases or decreases in
the Territory’s net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving, deteriorating, or
remaining steady.

However, you must consider other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the Territory’s overall
economic environment, the condition of the Territory’s roads and other infrastructure, and the quality of
services 1o assess the overall health and performance of the Territory.

As mentioned above, in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the
Temritory into three kinds of activities:

+  Governmental activities - Most of the Territory's basic services are reported here, including the
public safety, health and welfare, education, culture, general administration, and public works.
Income taxes and federal gramts finance most of these activities.

* Business-type activities - The Territory charges various fees to recover the costs of operating certain
services it provides, The Territory's airport and industrial park are activities reporied here.

» Discretely-presented component units - These account for activities of the Territory’s reporting
entity that do not meet the criteria for blending, specifically the American Samoa Power Authority,
the American Samoa Community College, the Lyndon B. Johnson Hospital and the American
Samoa Telecommunications Authority.

Reporting the Territory's Most Significanmt Funds

Fund Financial Sétalem

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the
Territory as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by law and/or by contract or grant
agreements. However, management establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money
for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants
and other money.

Crovernmenial funds - Most of the Territory™s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are
available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Territory's general
government operations and the basic services it provides. Govemnmental fund information helps
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to
finance the Termtorv's programs. The differences of results in the Governmental Fund financial
statements (o those in the Government-Wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation
following each Governmental Fund financial statement.



TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Proprietary funds - When the Territory charges customers for the services it provides - whether to owtside
customers or to other units of the Territory - these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reporied in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Met
Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets. In fact, the Temitory’s
enterprise funds are essentially the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide
statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.

Fiduciary funds - The Territory is responsible for assets of these funds than - because of a trust
arrangement or other fiduciary requirement - can be used only for trust beneficiaries or others parties, such
as the Amencan Samoa Government Employee Retirement Fund. These are the types of assets reporied in
fiduciary funds. The Territory is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used
for their intended purpose. All of the Territory’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of
fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. We exclude these activities from the
Territory's government-wide financial statements because the Territory cannot use these assets to finance
operations.

A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TERRITORY AS A WHOLE

Net Assets

The Territory's combined net assets increased from $217,660,597 10 $222,742 862 between fiscal years
2005 and 2006. Looking at the net assets of governmental and business-type activities separately,
governmental assets had a larger increase largely due to the additional of the MLV, Sili, a water
transportation vessel between the Territory"s islands, and renovations to several facilities. Ongoing airpont
renovations contributed to the increase in business-type activities.

{nvernmental Busines-Type
Ativities Activities Totsl
ks il Al EuLE ] Pk 205
Capial asets, net SIOERSE  SI86 168500 $59,721,306 $61,150,919 CWANAH  SMTIIROE
Unher muscts 71,689,935 TL6ZRS 504,862 558,791 72,194,797 73,157,714
Total assets JALITEOET TR T4l 0,20, 268 6L 8710 ol 608 145 T30,907, 143
Current lishiitics 47,187,521 47966171 4332881 4,562,954 51,520,702 2,509,125
Non-carent lishiltics 12,473,956 45,255 155 0 0 32,423, 9% 45245155
Total linbilities 9,611,777 53,301 126 [EEETT 4,562,554 5304658 57764280
et mancly
Imvesied in cepital saeets,
et f related debe 163,174,082 181, 38,509 50,721,406 61,150,919 22 905 458 2288008
Uneesriced (1,408.842) (16, 142.403) (A019) (4,004,163} (SIMBEL _ (30,146.56)
Total nel ausety 5 161 %7210 SIES 50006 % SSEISRT 47185750 52076l 550 5220 42 BT




TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Changes in Net Assels

For the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, net assets of the primary government changed as
follows:

Governmenial Business-Type
Aetivities Agivvilies Totsl
2005 20005 2[NS 20065 2003 L]

Revemues
Frogram reverues F103, 048,152 116,345,006 55,776,700 6 473,042 £112,822 851 S122512.13%
Teoes and other general revenues 6,069,155 72,289,060 F1A4R] 24424 TH 6,616 TI 313490

Tatal revenwes 17115307 1RR.6I8_165 o R0 150 697 466 1A% 919,457 1941358631
Expesses
(eerenal government A6, 306 103 5521753 - - 4& 06, 200 S5 2ITRELS
Public safety 11,724,185 12,927 45946 = = 10,724,185 § 2,973 496
iHeahl and vwelfane A1, 106,745 32315 . a 30106745 kel
Pabilic works 5,751,550 184101 - . L751,650 17400010
Educaticn and culoe 4,133,732 56311340 - - G4, 155,712 6303340
Froscmic development 14,235 370 £.50104] - - 14,255 276 55370410
|rrizres 2 HAd 166 3 6T652E - - 2R 16 1ETAETE
[mschostriad park ] - §15 9T 74,068 SML0T4 574 06K
Adrpot = = [ e ] 1647 A 265 I THLST

Tadal LRt it 176, 138.947 183.737.651 s, 595 743 6.315.715 JEX T3], 200 I300ET 355

Encess (defcaency j befone

] 2,989,350 4,900,514 1,208 947 181,751 i, 108,297 S0E 65
Transfers (20406915 (1.071.618) 2051091 1071618 - =
Inerease im net svsels o 53 82K 806 8 260 018 $1.2%53 345 84198297 5 07 265
— - - - —————— e, B L L —

‘The Territory's governmental activities” increase in net assets of $3,282,896 represents a 2.36% positive
change from the prior year. The business-type activities® increase in net assets of $1,253,369 represents a
2.24%, positive change in net assets. The results indicate that the Territory, as a whole, improved upon its
financial eondition from the prior year,

; ntal Activiti

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is given. Of
particular interest is the format that is significantly different than a typical Swutement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance. You will notice that expenses are listed in the first column with
revenues from that particular program reported to the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue, The
reason for this kind of format is to highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions on the
Temtory’s taxpayers and citizens. It also identifies how much each function draws from the general
revenues or if it is self-financing through fees and grants or contributions. All other governmental
revenues are reported as general. It is important to note all taxes are classified as general revenue even if
restricted for a specific purpose,



TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
SEFTEMBER 30, 2006

For the yvear ended September 30, 2006, the Territory’s governmental activities were funded as follows:

Governmental Activities Sources

Olncome taxes

B Excise taxes

O Grants/Contributions
OCharges for services
B Other
OIntergovernmental

Governmental Activities Uses

DO Public Safety
B General Government

OHealth and Welfare

O Public Works

B Education and Culture
O Economic Development

10% 18% Hinterest

For the year ended September 30, 2006, total expenses for governmental activities amounted to
$183,737,651. Of these total expenses, taxpayers and other general revenues funded $72,289,069 while
those directly benefiting from the programs funded $11,908,089 from charges for services and
£104,441,007 from grants and contributions.



Crovermmenial Activii

Gienersl gavesnment
Fubl safety

Health and welfure
Fishls wadki
Edwention and eculiare

Economic developmeni

TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

AR

Met Revenue (Expense) of Governmental Activities

Mgl Reveaur

Tetal Expenae (Expemse)
afl Nerviees af Services
{11k 005 L0035 200H
46,306 201 f I5%i7 EE6 (515892977 (520774 517}
10,724,185 13.923.406 (7, DEQ.1TH) (K. Ty a88)
0,006,745 ¥2.342 %99 (10,366 9T4) {12252 245}
5,751 650 1741111 [&22.233) {10471 D4Ry
64, 155732 56,312,540 (28,847 TI0) {12 853075)
14235276 5,525,041 {7,504 560 2% 744

Inlgeedt :,1-:6,1 fath IIE'JEIH K !:_!-llﬁ Iﬁ-ﬁt ;]‘_ﬁ.'ilﬁ_.l:iﬁt
Tatal $176,125.957 $183,737.651 {$73.079.805)  (S67 IHE $34}
Business-type Activities

In reviewing the business-type activities net (expense)revenue, the following highlights should be noted:

¢ Total business-type activities reported net revenues of $157,327 for the year ended September 30,
2006,

o Of the business-type activities, the airport reported net program revenues of $199.216 which included
the impact of capital grants and contributions in the amount of $3,388,708. Withowt the capital grants
and contributions, the airport would have sustained net program expenses of $3,189492, The
industrial park reported net program expenses of 341,389,

Pt Farverme {Experse) of Busines-Type Activitics

Mol Fumvenae
Total Expense (Expense)
of Services of Servioes
206 2006 2005 25
Alrpon 36,065,269 5,741,647 53340082 319,216
Indhstrial perk 529974 574,068 (158.616) (41, 555)
Tostal

$6,595.243 SII5T15  _S3,181466 315737



TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TERRITORY'S FUNDS

As the Termitory completed its 2006 fiscal year, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance
of 526,360,418, which is a 4.5% increase from the prior year combined fund balance of $25,214,811. The
enterprise funds reported combined net assets of $57,146,756 or a 22% increase from 2005,

Other fund highlights include:

e For the year ended September 30, 2006, the General Fund's total fund balance increased by
$779.126 or 8.2% from the prior year's fund balance of $9.483,898, for a total fund balance of
$10,263.024.

# The Grant Fund's total fund balance increased by $453,744 from the prior year's fund balance of
£1,299,955, for a total fund balance of $846,211.

® The airpont enterprise fund, afier the recognition of capital grants and contributions of 3,388,710
reported an increase in net assets of §1,205,818,

* The government employee retirement fund posted an increase in net assets of the fund of
$13,669,558 or 7.4% for the year, which included net appreciation of the fair value of investments
of $15,068,593,

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Although the Fono revised the General Fund's original budget during the vear, the original estimates of
revenues and expenditures were not significantly altered. However, actual revenues reported exceeded
revenue estimates by $5.6 million.

The final budget also projected expenditures of $75,534,500, although actual expenditure reported totaled
$89,443,071 for a difference of $13,908,571. This was primarily caused by the general government
function exceeding 115 estimated cxpenditures by $3.6 million and the health and welfare function
exceeding its estimated expenditures by $8.3 million. The health and welfare increase was due to a
agreement that was made through the Fono to fund expenditures of the LBI Medical Center. Whereby,
$8.3 million was committed through the government in 2006 for current expenditures while the remaining
$1.7 million will cover 2007 LBJ expenditures. A $10 million loan was obtained from the American
Samoa Government Retirement Fund to fund this arrangement.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of September 30, 2006, the Territory had $186,168,509 invested in capital assets, net of
depreciation, including land and land improvements, buildings, infrastructure and various machinery and
equipment. See table below. This represents a net increase of $16,479,457, or 9.7% over the prior year,

Primary Govermmeni Caplial Asseis
(Mt of nccumulsted depreciation)

Governmentil Business-Type
Activities Ativities Total
Pt 2006 LK LA 2005 2006
Lord and larsd Emprovements S1.530 718 £1.539.718 £44.233 200 541,826.923 S5 773518 43306641
Buildings and structures 61,142,761 62,726,921 2058 oRg 13,002 466 G1.241. 749 TE 70387
Cither improvements 20,188,256 19,971,040 - . 20,188,256 19.571.040
Machinery and equipmen BA4ELR 14.518.715 1,681,598 3,165, 368 11 LT6.4 16 17484083
Infrasinsctsre 55000434 775 ATH - . 55,000,634 L5, T7IA4TE
Construction in progress 18,322 805 836,617 11.707, 020 3,146,161 30,029,885 33902758
Totals 5165680052 L1856, 168,500 $30.721.406 561150918 129410458 5247319427
_— ] e i EE——————

This year's more significant capital asset additions included $3.8 million of airport improvements in the
airport enterprise fund.

See Note 5 to the financial statements for more detail information on the Territory’s capital assets and
changes therein.

Long- Term Debe

At year-end, the Termtory had $57,556,261 in long-term debt outstanding, which represents a $13,495470
or 30.6% increase from the prior year. Currently, the business-type activities of the Territory have no
long-term debt. The Territorys changes in long-tenm debt by type of debt are as follows:

Primary Government Leng-Term Debit
Ceovernamaentsl Bassiss-Type
Activities Autivities Tzl
2003 Ll 2003 2006 2005 2006

Accrued compensated nbsences S12663, 702 J13gns52 % . 5 . $12,663,702 513,822,352
FERLA, hoan 2545821 2630118 - - 2545821 2630118
Cienernl obligation honds 6,515,000 4,430,000 . . £, 515,000 4,430,000
Dept. af Tnterior loan 17,5, 10 I8,119,542 . - 17,50, 190 18,119,542
Workers Compensation Claims S 420 832 538 . - S0 A2 531555

Armerican Samoa Government

Rietirement Fund - LB Loan - BR84.036 . . = 9,884,034
Lanfill edosure and post-closure ET.65R 287658 . - BT 458 287 458
Claims and judpements 3,500, DK 7. B50,000 - . 3,500,000 7,850,000

Totak £84,060,79) 57,556,601 % - 5 - 44,060,791 557,556,261
—_— T e

See Note 8 to the financial statements for more detail information on the Territory’s long-term debt and
changes therein.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

The American Samoa economy took a slight downturn in 2006, Governmental payroll funds of 584.2
million streamed into the economy however private monetary payments remained consistent with the prior
year,

Island employment rates increased marginally for the first time since 2002, The government labor force
decreased 2.88%, private sector employment increased (1.96% between 2005 and 2006), Cannery
employment increased 4.64% from 2005: The two American Samoan-based canneries currently employ
4,757 compared to 4,546 in 2003,

Construction activity continues to decrease after the typhoon-related uptum of 2004, Approximately 100
new structures and 23 building extensions and alterations contributed to the fixed asset base of the
Territory.

The balance of trade for American Samoa was negative $140.7 million in 2006. Import and export trade
decreased by $305 million and $64.7 million, respectively., Of the three import sectors, ASG was the most
conservative at $22.06 million; the Canneries imported $215.6 million and the remaining private sector
consumed $341.5 million. Exported goods, primarily tuna, from the Territory were valued at $438.5
millicn.

ASG continues to strive toward multiplicity within the island’s market economy. Foreign entrepreneurs,
investors, and corporations are being actively recruited. American Samoan Economists are committed to
strategizing on blends of American Samoan labor with production of unique, locale-specific products and
services.  Potential product developmemt areas include tropical aquatic, tourism, and off-site
telecommunications.

Budgetary predictions for 2007 indicate that ASG is focusing on maximizing revenues and restricting
expenditures. The balanced budget document for 2007 itemizes $285.5 million of revenue and expenses.

CONTACTING THE TERRITORY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial repont 15 designed o provide our citizens, laxpayers, customers and creditors with a general
overview of the Territory™s finances and to show the Termritory’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Treasurer’s
Office at Executive Office Building, Hwy 1, Page Pago, American Samoa 96799, telephone number
(684) 633-4155, fax number (684) 633-4100.
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ASSETS
Cadh and Cridy Equivalents

Invesiments
Taxes Receivahie, mel
Agcounts Receivahle, net
Due from U5, Government
Due fram Primeny Government
Due from Chher Funds
Invenlories
Due from Component Units
Prepaid Expenses
Capital Lesse Receavable
Caher Deferred Assets
Internal Balances
Capital Assets, met

Total azseis

LIABILITIES

Cumrent |sbilities:
Dwue o Other Funds=MFooled Cash
Accouns Payable
Incaime Tax Refiznds Payable
Acerucd Expenses
[hae to Oither Funds
Chae to Componsnt Linits
Contrmct Retention
Deposits
Claims Payable
Advances rom Granis
Deferred Revenue

TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA

Long-Term Debt Payable Within One Year

Other Liabiliaes
Total cumment abilitecs

Honcwrment liabilities:

Long-Term Dbt pavable afier one year

Other Liabilities due after one year

Todn! non-gurrent liabilities
Taotal liskilities

Irwested in Capital Asset, net of Related Diebe

Heztrstied
Unrestrscted
Total net mszets

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEFTEMBER 30, 2006
Governmenial Busimcss-type

Activities Activities Tosal Component Linits

¥ 19,650,636 3§ 172378 § 19,823,001 § 10,639,846
22878276 - 2LETHITG 4,443,990
0379980 - BAT9,980 -

525,207 439,520 054,727 17800, 355
17.616,322 - 1746046,322 263830

. J . 306,965

. = . 204,003

1,472,069 - 1 AT2,069 596,731

16,536 - 16,536 -

TT2 504 - VT804 1,331,762

264,289 - 264,289 -

53,004 (53,104) - -

[ 56,168,504 61150919 JTI19.438 130,539,361
238,797,432 a1 708,710 320,507,142 174 478,833
2,150,812 - 2150812 -

8,353 624 150,630 8604254 1115425
4,060,921 - 4060921 -
5020346 456,595 5607241 £.559, 162

- - . 57428

1. E47.060 - 1. R4T,060 -

461,971 488,359 50,332 .

Sl 60 - Gis], 00 174,253

1100, 000 . 1 06, EoH -

7,924,510 3,317,370 11,261,580 &72 561

4,763, 150 . 4,763,159 -
2ATOGER . 2470988 57 595

S T301108 - 9,730,118 I.253.81%
47,546,171 4,562,954 52,509,125 22,360,237
11,543,048 - 11,843,048 7.78% 583
33412107 - 33412107 | B59.097
45,255,155 - 45,255,155 5,647, G800

93, N3 2 4.562.954 99,764,280 JL007.917
181,738,509 1,150,919 242,889,428 103294, 719

- - . 52130139

{16, 142.403) {4,046k, 163) [ 20, 145, 566) 33,921,038

5 165,596,106 8§ 046786 § 2Y2TARRGZ 5 142470916

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
SEFTEMBER 30, 2006
Program Revenues
Indirect Operating
Expense Charges for Giranis and Capdinl Granis and
FunctionsTrograms Experises Allocation Servides Conlributbong Coantribulsm
Primary Governimenl
Gowvermmental setivinkes:
Gieneral Government § 5201783 5 (344.335) 5 N1v0BORe 5 9EMZID S B, 366,665
Public Salety 12,923 4% 13827 - - 4,455,085
Healih nnd Welfare 32342959 #90.588 - 21,002,744 -
Public Works 18,741,111 212,521 - 144,616 B3 35,060
Education snd Culture 56,312,340 2,702,712 . 42,135,487 4,322,500
Economic Development 5,523,041 2108 B46 5,547,631 -
Interesy 2 5T6H2E . - . -
Total goveramental activities § 183737651 § - 10,908,089 TH,958 588 15482319
Business-type activities
Industrinl Park 574068 532079 -
Adrpart 5741647 2,552,155 3 38E TR
Tital business-type achiyvities 6,315,715 1084334 . 1.88, 708
Total primary governmeni $ 189,738, 366 S 145992433 5 TEOSRGHE 5 IRETN.O27
Compongnt Unity
American Samoa Power Authority 56,174,011 45 EATATH 1307, 583 3,234,004
American Samoa Community College 10,035,711 5,041,132 254,361 -
Amencan Samoa Medical Center Authonity 29 263 475 14,0094 059 - 12004210
Amerfican Samoa Telecommunication Autharity 17,824,434 18,040,783 - -
5 113197631 5 B33 452 5 1561946 % 4,445,427

General revenues:
Trxes:
Imcome Taxes for general purposss
Excise Taxes
Intergovernmental
Tobaceo Sctibemenl Procecds

Payiments from the Terriory of American Samoa

Miscellaneois
Transfers
Total general revenuss and transfers
Changes in net sssels
Met assels, beginning of year

Mot azsets, end af year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Govwernmenital Business-type
Agtivities Activities Totals Component Units
5 20457 5 - & (20,774,517 5 -
(8,703 GRE) - (8,703 688) W
(12.232,243) i (12.232,243) ‘
(LB FEREY] - {10,4735.948)
(12,553,075} * (12.533.074) -
25,744 = 25744 -
{2.676,828) - (1676, 828) -
(67388 254, = {67388, 555) -
: (41,889) (41,889) -
1992146 153216 *
- 157327 157,327 x
(67 388,555 157527 (67.231,228)
5 {2,964, 944)
(46202 16)
(13.957.995)
260,549
5 (21,346, 808)
15,678 833 - 15,678 855
20,363 846 244 20,988 270 3
B B45 000 - H.644, 000 1,734,376
E00.289 - B, 289 -
- - - 18,00 027
&, 107079 - 6,107,009 BL2540, 102
{1.071.618) 1,071,608 " .
T1.217.451 1,056,042 T2.313,493 30,034,505
3 EIEAG 1,253,369 5082263 B.6ET 60
161,767,210 55 E03 18T 217,660, 397 i]]_‘n‘ﬂ]j‘_ﬁ“
§ 1635906108  § §l.0460%36 3 prrirl vl S 1 142,470,916

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Eqaivalents

e from Other Funds-Pooled Cash

Investmenis

Taxes Receivahle, net

Accounts Recsivable, net

e from UL S, Governnsent

[hae fram bker Funds

Invemores

e from Component Units

Prepaid Expenses

Capital Lense Receivable
Total pssels

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Linbdlities:
[Chue o Other Funds-Fosled Cash
Axcounts Payvable
Income Tax Refimids Payable
Accnued Expenses
e to Other Funds
Drue to Component Linits
Contract Retenfian
Deposils
Advances from Gramts
Deferred Revenue
Tostal Habilities

Fund balances:

Reserved for Inventories

Reserved for Encumberances

Reserved for Debt Servige

Unreserved:
Undesignated

Unreserved reposted in:
Special revenue funds
Caplial projects funds
Total fund balsnces

Todul linbilities and fund balances

AS OF SEFTEMBER 30, 2006
=Nl e
Diebt Sexvice (rovermmenial Toml Governmenial
(ieneral Fund Cirants Fand Fund Funds Funds
5 13060991 5 3397013 % 606,282 % IE 5 19,406, T
6,920,595 - - . 6,920,595
B 159,184 - BA%1 060 1,697 241 20,370,085
9,379,950 - - - 9379 SR
215572 - 136615 173,020 525,207
- 13,420,542 = 4,194,380 17,616,322
520,193 = - - 320,193
625 838 846,211 - - 1472, 06
= - - 16,536 16,536
172504 - - . TT504
264,289 - = - 264,289
5 10948168 % 126635292 -5 921397 § £424.033 § T7,26:4, 550
5 3TA0ZRT 0§ 6442710 0§ 400 5 ATTHIE  § 10,660,884
4,032,520 3050681 - 1,252 346 B 336 547
4,064, 92% - - - i 60 923
4,080,954 944,325 - 446,747 5,072,026
. = = 137.01% 137,019
1,652, 7% 1,270 - - 1847 060
= - - 461,972 461,972
677,138 284 522 - - 06 1,560
- 5900, 504 - 23,005 7,924,504
11,441,532 - - = 11,441,532
29,686, 144 18.815.081 A0 2398507 50,%04,132
615,858 B46.211 - - 1,472,064
793,198 O - - T893, 198
- - 9.225.557 - 9,325 557
£,843,968 - - 625,626 14,569, 554
10,263,024 846,211 9225 587 G025 636 26,360,418
£ 9040068 3 19,565,292 § 9225957 § BAM415 % 77,264,430
= e ——

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
TO THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Fund balances - total government funds s 26,360,418

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental
funds

Governmental capital assets § 295,054,523
Less accumulated depreciation (108, 886,014) 186,168,509

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in
the governmental funds

Governmental bonds payahle 5 4,430,000
AMGRF-LBJ Loan 9,884,006
Compensated Absences 13822352
Claims and Judgmenis TES0, 000
Other Liabilities 21,037.31 (57.023,706)

Deferred revenue in governmental funds is susceptible to full
accrual on the entity-wide statements

6,678,372
Deferred Revenue
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the
costs of certain activities to individual funds. The assets and
lizbilities of internal service funds are incleded in governmental
petivities in the statement of net assets 3412513
Net assets of governmental activities 5 | 65,596,106

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 20, 2006
Mon-Major Todal
Debat Service Governmental Caovernmental
{keneral Fund Cirants Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes § 357BL1B5 § - % LMI4TI § - % 58,028 656
Licenses and Permits 1026, 761 - : - 1,026,761
Inbergovernmental B.564, 000 7 666,054 - 6,459 543 113,090,007
Charges for Services 4.410,781 T96, ] 1,295,148 2010, 146 BE14,017
Fines and Fees 2276811 - o 46l - 2367, 292
Inperdepartmenial 52018104 - - = 3218104
Insuranee Proceeds - - - 1,109,955 1,004,955
Tobacco Sesilement Proceeds - - B9, 289 . R0, 289
Sltscellameous JAZ6.817 310,691 1,082 262 11737 4,597,141
Total revenses Bl 16348 Q8771 6ES L R0HE 631 9,608 425 195,242 227
Expenditures:
Cuarrent -
Creneral Governmeni J0.3%4.401 12,570,885 1,908 £,E593 B0OD 47 862 085
Public Salety 7968028 4,438,085 . . 12,426,113
Health and Recreation 11669 575 21.0602,744 - - 32672119
Public Works i, 104,821 12,802 185 - - 18,907,006
Educaion and Culture 28,563,350 42,135 457 - - T0, 702 6T
Economic Development 4,752 866 . - . 4,752,866
Capital lmprovemenis - 5.R4T 3] - 5,586,698 11,434,329
Principal - = 2200, 9064 - 2,200,954
Inicres - . 1,531,891 - 1,550,801
Total expenditures 9443 071 QE.BI0.018 376853 10,480 493 202490 440
Excess [deficiency) of revenues over expendilures (8,273, 590) [$5.333) 1,863,778 (TE2,073) (7.248.21%8)
Oiher financing sources (mees):
Livan Proceeds 10 M) RO - - - 110, 0100, )
Tramsfers In 291667 56,333 - 111,000 459,000
Transfers Chat (1238951} - (291 667} (30.%13) (1,611,431
Tatal ather nancing
SOUTCES [ WSS} 9052, Tl 0, 333 (291 667} 30,187 B Bd7 569
Chamges in fund balances T, 126 - 1,572,111 i751,8R6) 1,554,151
Fund balances (deficits), beginning of year 483,898 1299935 7683446 6,777,512 25,214,511
Change in Reserve for Inventory - (453.744) - - (453, 7a4)
Fund balances [deficits). end of year § 10263004 § B46.211 § 9225557 § 6025626 5§ 26360418

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Net change in fund balances - total government funds 5 1,145,607

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Government funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
pssels is depreciated over their estimated useful lives

Expenditures for capital assets 525401506
Less current year depreciation (8.967,136) 16,434,370

Bond proceeds and other debt proceeds provide curremt
financial resources to government funds, but issuing debt
increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
Repayment of bond principal is expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
linbilities in the statement of net assets

Borrowings S 10,000, 000
Interest (1,144,937
Principal payments 3,091,252 (8,053,685)

Some revenues reported in the statement of activities do not
provide current financial resources and therefore are not
reported as revenues in governmental funds

Deferred Revenues (1,385,953)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore
are nod reported as expenditures in governmental funds

Claims and judgment (4,350,040
Change in long-term compensated Absences {1,158 650) (5,508,650)

Imternal service funds are used by management to charge the
costs of certain activities to individual funds. The net
revenue (expense) of the intemal service funds is reported

with governmental activities 1197207
Change in net assets of governmental activities §___1E28.896

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS
Cash snd Cash Equivalents
Investmenis
Dise from Other Funds=Pooled Cash
Accounts Recelvable, net
Dise fram Other Funds
Capital Asscts, net
Tatal assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Aconued Expenses
Due to Dther Funds
Contract Hetenlion
Claims Payvahle
Aulvances from CGirants

Tatal lkabilitics

NET ASSETS
Invesicd in Capitnl Asscts

Unresricoed
Total net assets

TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006
l".rl'lnr_Fri.';.: Funds
Mon-Major Agtivities:
Alrport Enterprise Fumnids Tutal Intzrmal Service
5 172375 5 - 172375 % MIERS
) . 2 2 3K, 19]
& = - 1,589,477
299,557 | 35963 439,510 -
9350 - B350 -
60, 068073 1 OED Bib 61,150,919 249,030
i, 345394 1,322 R 61,772,204 4,640,363
250,630 - 250,634 17,075
486,595 - 485 595 49,320
G2 4594 - Bl A 330,070
dEE 359 - 488 559 =
- . - 532,555
1337370 . 333730 -
4,625 448 . 4,625 448 B29.020
B0, 068073 1,082 846 ], 150,919 TG 030
i4,144.124) 133963 {4,001, 163 3411513
m _S 1222800 ST.HM}L § 1711543



TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEFTEMBER 30, 2006
Enterpeise Funds
Govermmental
Activilies:
Mon=Major Intermal Sorvice
Alirpor Enterpeise Fumds Tatal Fuand
Operating revenues:
Thaxes 5 24414 5 . 5 24,424 5
Interpovernmenial - = ' -
Charges for Services 2,350,155 5321710 3,084,334 2,259,504
Total sperating revemwes 2, 576,5T9 512179 30108, 758 2,259,504
Operating expenses:
Perscnnel 2,273,207 127.E19 2,600,026 363355
Operations and Matnbenance S6R 204 119,247 GHE 147 g37,122
Depreciniion and amortization 200,144 136,404 3,026,548 35,726
Tatal sperating expemses 341847 ST4,070 6,315,717 1,236,183
Diperating incodme (loss) (3,165,068) (41,8813 {3,206, 55%) 1,023,321
Mompperating revenses (expendes):
Miscel lanenas - . . D3.0%3
Tutal ponoperating revenses (expendes) - - - G3,073
Incame {boxs) before capital contributisns and
transfers (3, 165.068) {41,851} 13,0006, 050} 0.1 06,394
Transfers In 98217 89,442 1,070,618 20,213
Transfers Chut - . - -
Capital Contributions 3,388,710 . 3,388,710
Changes in net assets 1,205 818 47.55] 1,253,365 1,197,207
Total ned assets, beginning of year 54.718,129 1,175,258 55,893,387 2.514,356
Total net assets, end of year 5 55033047 £ 1232 E00 £ 57145756 £ 3711541
= — = —— — ]

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROFPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006
Enterprise Funds Internal
Taisiria; Sy ior
Adrpari I'ark Totals Funds
Cmsh Flows from Operstimp Activities
Riecoipts lrom custamers 5 2260666 5 418641 3§ 689307 § 2,759 504
Heceipt of overpayment - - . 550,249
Ciraniy Erom Liovermenis « - -
Tax Recepis 24,424 . AaM .
Fayments to suppliers {170,243 (NZ1,523) [1LE27,G68) (KRG, CHI3)
Paymenls Lo enaplogecs (2.235.224) {356, S6d) {2,621,788) {3B2,030
Imemal Agtvities-Recoipt Fromi{payment to) other fumds {142 505y . (143,399 {1,584 B20K)
Met Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities R § I - T T I F A § B 1 ¥ 51T} 140,270)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Fimancing A ctivities
Additions o Fived Assets and Work-in-Frocess {4456, 058) . (4, 456,05K) (R0.213)
Recepts of federal capitad grants 1,388 708 - 3,388,708 s
Met Cosh Used in Capital and
Helated Fimancing Activities {1067 350 - (1,067 5450 (EDR13)
Cank Flaws from [nvestiog Activities
Tarchase of |nvestments = = .
Sale of lnvestmerits - 03334
Imteresi Incame - - 102,916
Met Cash Provided by (Used im) Investing
Aclivitics - - - 36,250
Cash Flows from Mencapital Financing Activities
Oiperating Teansfern In {Cut) G8.176 £0.442 1,071,618 BLE1S
Advances 1,350,656 - 1,390 656 -
et Cash Provided by (Used imj
Noncapilal Finanging Activilies 2ITLRI2 £9.942 2 462,274 RDELS
Ingreass (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (484 4%6) (ARd A96) (A0 G2E )
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Heginaing 655871 e &56,871 23893
Cashi pmd Cash Equivalents - Ending 172373 - 172375 243,605
T SS—
Recomcilliation of operating income 1o net cash provided (used) by
operating sclivities;
Operating Income (Loss) 5 (3165066 § 41.891) % {(.20695T) 35 1023321
Aufjustments (o Reconcile Orpermting Income o Met
Cash Provided by Opersting Activitics
Deprociation and Amorieation 2.900,142 126,404 LRk 35728
Decresse (lncresse) in Assels
Receivahles {2590 489) {003,538) {395 02T 550,240
Oue form Cgher Fands {9,390y - {93905 {1428 550)
Insrease {Decrease) in Lighdigics
Aceommis Payable and Accrued Expenica {1,050, 1 66 {70,417 (1,060,455 13,8013
[hie 16 Dher Fisnds [ 134,00 - {134,008 {456,250
Claims payabis . . . (B R05)
et Cash Pravided by (Used la) Operating Activifies 5 {(L7E9978) § (E9.442) %§ (LEMIAM) § [348.278)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS

SEPFTEMBER 30, 2006
Pension Trust Apency

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 113,305 3 6,734,690
[rae from Other Funds-Pooled Cash . 2150512
Investmenis 197492, 728 -
Accounts Receivable, net 451,699
Contribulions Receivable 523871 -
Prepaid Expenses 5B .
Capital Assets, net 546,164 -

Tonal assels 199,211,815 §.885 502
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 152,543 147
Deposits - 2425325
Contribution Refands 618,793 .
lmmigraticn Bonds - 6,460,030

Todal liabilities 7738 5 8885 502
NET ASSETS
Held in trust L1 198 440479

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUND
SEFTEMBER 30, 2006

Additions:
Investment Income=Interast
Contributions-Sponsors
Contributions-Members
Dividends on common stoek
Lease revenue from centennial office building
Net appreciation in fair value of investments
Chibher income
Invesiment Fees
Centennial office building maintenance expenses

Total Additions

Deductions:
Interest on emplovee contributions refunded
Benefiis
Employee contributions refunded
General and administrative expenses

Total Deductions
Changes in net asseis

Net assets, beginning of vear

MNet asseis, end of vear

Pension Trust

b1 329,798

6,567,095
2,629,029
2,854,770
656,662
15,068,593
192,482
(216,865)
(374,667)

27,706,897

202,738
12,207,031
576,903
1,050,667

14,037,339

13,669,558

184,770,921

3 198,440,479

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEFTEMBER 30, 2006

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. The Reporting Entity

The Territory of American Samoa (the Territory) is an unincorporated Territory of the United
States and operates under the jurisdiction of the United States Department of Interior. A
constitution was adopted in 1966, and in 1977 the Secretary of the Interior's order number 3009
provided for a popularly elected Governor and Lieutenant Govermnor. The Legislative body
(FONO) is comprised of Members of the House of Representatives who are popularly elected and
Senators who are chosen by village councils.

The financial statements have been prepared primarily from records maintained by the Treasury
Depantment.  Additional information was obtained from agencies and other entities based on
independent or subsidiary accounting records maintained by them.

The financial statements include all funds and account groups of the primary government, which is
the Temritory, as well as the component units and other organizational entities determined to be
included in the Territory's financial reporting entity.

The decision to include a potential component unit in the Territory's reporting entity is based on
several eriteria including legal standing, fiscal dependency, and financial accountability. Based on
the application of these criteria, the following is a brief review of certain entities included in the
Territory”s reporting entity.

Primary Government

All offices, departments, agencies and authorities that are not legally separate entities have been
included in the Territorial reporting entity as part of the primary government unless otherwise
noted. Most of these have executives or boards appointed by the Govemnor, the FONO or a
combination thereof. These entities are financially accountable to and fiscally dependent on the

Territory.
Blended Component Units

Although legally separate entities, blended component units are in substance, part of the primary
government’s operations. The blended component unit serves or benefits the primary government
almost exclusively. Financial information from these units is combined with that of the primary
government. Following is a brief review of the blended component units,

American Samoa Government Emplovees Retirement Fund

The Retirement Fund was established in 1971 to provide retirement annuities for the employees of
the Territorial Government and its component units. [t is governed by a board of trustees
appointed by the Governor with the consent of the Senate and House of Representatives. The
Retirement Fund’s costs, based upon actuarial valuations, are funded by the participating
governmental employers and participants. The Retirement Fund is a pant of the primary
government and is reported in the fiduciary fund type. The Retirement Fund was audited by
independent auditors for the year ended September 30, 2006, and their report dated December 21,
2006 has been previously issued under separate cover. The Retirement Fund's report can be
obtained at its administrative offices.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

American Samoa Economic Development Authority

The American Samoa Economic Development Authority (the Authority) was created in 1986 by
the 1%th Legislature of American Samoa and is governed by a Board of Directors. The Board
consists of nine members, seven of whom are appointed by the Govemnor with the advice and
consent of the Legislature and two members of the Legislature, one from the Senate appointed by
the President of the Senate and one from the House of Representatives appointed by its Speaker.
The Authority can incur indebtedness for certain projects. The Bonds Series 1988 in the amount
of $10.94 million issued by the Authority for the Executive Office Building was refunded by
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2000. Therefore, the Authority has no bonds
outstanding. The Authority is a component unit which would be blended as part of the primary
government. However, during the year ended September 30, 2006, the Authority had no
operations; therefore, there are no amounts to blend into the primary govemment.

American Samoa Petroleum Cooperative, Ine,

The American Samoa Petroleum Cooperative, Inc. (the Cooperative) was created by executive
order in 1992 to ensure that the Territory is provided with a reliable and stable supply of uniform
high quality petroleum products at reasonable costs and that the petroleum storage facilities of the
Territory are properly constructed and maintained to meet applicable standards. The Board of
Directors consists of a chairman who is the representative of the Terminal Operator, an appointee
by the Governor, a third member appointed by the other two directors and one additional member
appointed by each petroleum supplier. The Cooperative is fiscally dependent on the Territory in
that it receives rent and fees levied by the primary government on the bulk petroleum products put
through the Territory’s facilities. The Cooperative provides services almost entirely to the primary
government and all real property acquired by the cooperative is the property of the Temitory. The
Territory provides administrative suppori and pays all personnel costs for the Cooperative. The
Cooperative is a component unit and blended as part of the primary government as part of
Petroleum Facilities in the capital projects fund. The Cooperative issued separate financial
statements for the year ended September 30, 2006. The Cooperative's report can be obtained at its
admimstrative offices.

Discrete Component Units

Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the combined financial
statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government. They are
financially accountable to the primary government, or have relationships with the primary
government such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. These discrete component units serve or benefit those outside the
primary government. Following is a brief review of the discretely presented component units.

American Samoa Power Authority

The American Samoa Power Authority (ASPA), with corporate powers, was created to generate
and distribute power to the citizens of the Territory. It also provides water, sewer and solid waste
services to the Territory. The Governor appoints and the FONO confirms the board of directors.
ASPA was audited by independent auditors for the year ended September 30, 2006, and its report
dated January 17, 2007, has been previously issued under separate cover. The Authority's report
can be obtained at its administrative offices.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

American Samoa Community College

The American Samoa Community College (ASCC) was created with corporate powers to develop
a program of education to meet the current and future needs of American Samoa. The Governor
appoints a majority of the board of directors with the advice and consent of the Legislature.
ASCC is funded through Territorial appropriations, tuition, federal grants and donations. ASCC
was audited by independent auditors for the year ended September 30, 2006 and its report dated
January 21, 2007 has been previously issued under separate cover. The report can be obtained at
its administrative offices.

American Samoa Medical Center Authority - Lyndon B. Johnzon Teopical Medical Center

The American Samoa Medical Center Authority - Lyndon B. Johnson Tropical Medical Center
(LBJ) was established to create a medical system that can provide quality medical services to the
citizens of the Territory. The Governor appoints and the FONO confirms the board of directors.

Amencan Samoa Telecommunications Authority

The American Samoa Telecommunications Authority (ASTCA), with corporate powers, was
created to provide telecommunications capabilities to the citizens of the Territory. The Governor
appoints and the FONO confirms the board of directors. ASTCA was audited by independent
auditors for the year ended September 30, 2006 and its report dated July 11, 2007 has been
previously issued under separate cover. The report can be obtained at its administrative ofTices.

Related Organization

Organizations, for which a primary government is accountable because the Territory appoints a
voting majority of the board, but is not financially accountable, are related organizations, The
Development Bank of American Samoa is a related organization to the primary government, The
Development Bank's Board of Directors consists of ten members, nine of whom are appointed by
the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, The Chairman, who is a board member,
is elected by a majority of the board. The president of the Development Bank is a nonvoting ex-
officio member of the board, and may not serve as chairman. The Development Bank is classified
as another stand-alone governmental unit, not a component unit of the Territory.

. Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The Territory uses fund accounting under which it segregates its resources and accounts for them
in various individual funds. Each individual fund is an accounting entity with a self-balancing set
of accounts. Individual funds that have similar characteristics are combined into fund types.

Grovernmenial Funds

Governmental funds finance most of the termtorial governmental functions. The measurement
focus of the governmental funds is on sources, uses and balances of financial resources,
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The general fund is the Territorial general operating fund. It accounts for resources that fund the
services governments traditionally provide to its citizens except those required to be accounted for
in another fund.

Special revenue funds account for specific revenue sources (other than for capital projects and
debt service) that are legally or donor restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

Capital projects funds account for the acquisition of fixed assets or construction of major capital
projects not being financed by proprietary funds.

A debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of
principal and interest on general long-term obligations.

Proprictary Funds

Proprietary funds account for activities similar to those found in the private sector. The
measurement focus of the proprietary funds is upon determination of net income, financial
position, and cash flows. Enterprise funds account for business-like Territorial activities that
provide goods and services to the public financed primarily through user charges. Intemnal service
funds provide goods and services to other funds, agencies, component units, or other activities on
a cost allocation basis.

The Temitory's Proprietary Funds apply all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) pronouncements, and all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
staterments and inferpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions and Accounting
Research Bulletins (ARB) issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds account for resources the Temritory holds as trustee or agent for individuals,
private organizations, or other governmental units.

Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all the activities of the primary government and its component
units, except for fiduciary activities. Interfund activity, which duplicates revenues or
expenses, has been eliminated from these statements, except for those transactions and
balances between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported separately to highlight the differences in funding and
operations. Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues. Business-type activities, on the other hand, rely mostly on fees and charges that are
designed to recover the costs of operations, including the cost of capital,
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The statement of activities outlines the direct expenses of each of the Territory's major
functions and the program revenues generated by those programs. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues includes 1)
charges lo customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services,
or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricied to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues,

Government-wide financial statements do not provide information by fund or account group, but
distinguish between the Territory’s govemnmental activities and activities of its discretely presented
component units on the statement of net assets and statement of activities. Significantly, the
Territory’s statement of net assets includes both noncurrent assets and noncurrent liabilities of the
Territory, which were previously recorded in the General Fixed Assets Account Group and the
General Long-term Obligations Account Group. In addition, the government-wide statement of
activities reflects depreciation expenses on the Territory's fixed assets, including infrastructure,

In addition to the government-wide financial statements, the Territory has prepared fund financial
statements, which continue to use the modified accrual basis of accounting and the current
financial resources measurement focus. Accordingly, the accounting and financial reporting for
the Territory’s General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds, Debt Service Fund
and Fuduciary Fund is similar to that previously presented in the Territory's financial statements,

although the format of these fund level financial statements has been modified by Statement Mo.
34,

Management’s Discussion and Analysis which is presented as required supplementary information
includes an analytical overview of the Territory’s financial activities. In addition, budgetary
comparison statements are presented that compare the adopted and modified budgets with actual
results for the General Fund and the Special Revenue - Federal Grants Fund.

The fund statements include separate statements for governmental, fiduciary and proprietary
funds. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported
as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, And Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they ar¢ both measurable and available, Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafier 10 pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the Territory considers revenues to be available if they are
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collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Income taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available
only when the Territory receives cash.

The Territory reports the following major governmental funds:

e The General fund is the Territory's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

# The Grant fund accounts for the majority of grants received by the Territory except for
grants received by the proprietary funds. These activities are funded with grants from
various federal agencies and private sources.

= The Debt Service fund accounts for amounts accumulated for the repayment of long-
term obligations.

The Termtory's proprietary funds are the Airport Fund and Industrial Park Fund. The Airport
Fund 15 reported as a major fund. The Territory's proprietary activities include the operation
of the Pago Pago International Airport and the Tafuna Industrial Park.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are the transfers between the
business-type activities and the governmental activities.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Territory's proprietary activities are charges to the
customers for services. Principal operating revenues of the internal service funds are
premiums charged to individual departments for workers compensation coverage and charges
to departments or funds for housing or printing. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and
internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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d. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Territory adopts an annual budget on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles at the legal level of control, which is the department or project level. During the fiscal
year supplementary appropriations are made as needed. The results are increases to the
appropriations within the funds. The Director of the Office of Program Planning and Budget is
permitied under law to move amounts up to $25,000, or 1084 of line amounts, whichever is less,
from one line account to another; legislative appropriation is required on all line item account
shifts over 10% or $25,000. All annual appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year. Annual
budgets are adopted for the General Fund, cemain Special Revenue Funds and the Debt Service
Fund, Budgets for Proprietary and Trust Fund operations are estimated in the annual budget, but
controlled by available resources and demand for services.

Federal Grants, accounted for in certain Special Revenue Funds, have a budget and project life
determined by each granmt award. The Department of Interior’s operating grant is generally
awarded after adoption of the Territorial budget. The Territory has to adopt a supplemental budget
during the fiscal year to provide for differences between the estimated amount and the actual
amount of the grant award. Budgets for capital improvement projects are determined by local
funding appropriations and the annual Department of Interior Capital Improvement Projects grant
award.

¢. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation,
is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General, Special Revenue and
Capital Projects Funds. Encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year end in governmental fund types
are reported as reservations of fund balances provided there is an adequate fund balance to allow
for a reserve, since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

Encumbrances, which represent commitments that are to be funded by grants or other resources to
be provided in the future, are not reported as reservations of fund balance since they will not be
paid from the fund balance. Encumbrances, which represent commitments by departments in
excess of available appropriations, are not cammied forward or reserved, as these commitments must
be funded from resources o be provided in the subsequent year,

f. Invesimenis

Statutes authorize the Treasurer 1o invest funds at his discretion. The Treasurer’s investment
objectives are preservation of capital, maintenance of adequate liquidity, and obtaining the best
yield possible within prescribed parameters. Investments are stated at fair value. The investment
policies of the Land Grant Trust (a part of the American Samoa Community College) and the
Pension Trust are established by their respective boards. Investment of these funds are in a broader
variety of securities such as corporate bonds, equities, real estate, trusts, collateralized mortgage
obligations, asset backed securities and commercial paper.
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g. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The amounts shown on the Combined Balance Sheet as cash and cash equivalents represent the
total of petty cash, cash on deposit in banks and certificates of deposits with original maturities of
less than 90 days.

h. Interfund Transactions

The Terntory aceounts for the following types of interfund transactions:

Due From Other Funds-Pooled Cash and Due To Other Funds-Pooled Cash represent the excess
(due from) or deficiency (due to) of cash received by the general fund over the amount of
expenditures for participating funds paid by the General Fund. For certain funds, the Temitory
deposits all receipts into a general fund bank account and makes all disbursements from the same
account creating a due from or due to in the General Fund. The recording of the receipt or
disbursement on the participating funds' records creates a due from or due to for an equal amount.
Since the total Due From Other Funds-Pooled Cash for a panticipating fund can exceed the amount
of cash in the operating bank account these amounts are not classified as cash and cash
equivalents,

Due To/Due From Other Funds represents Quasi-external transactions invelving charges for goods
or services that one fund delivers or provides to another fund. These transactions are either
recorded as a reduction or increase in Due To/Due From Other Funds - Pooled Cash, if they are a
pooled cash participant, or as an interfund payable or receivable, if the agency is external 1o the
pooled cash account.

Advances due to and from other funds represent long-term interfund loan receivables and
payables,

Operating transfers include all interfund transactions that are not loans or reimbursements.
Receivahles

The Territory, with minor exceptions, has adopted the personal and corporate income tax code of
the United States in effect as of December 31, 2000. No changes to the US Tax Code since
December 31, 2000 have been adopted by the Temitory. Withheld income taxes held by
employers or corporations, taxes levied and billed by the tax office and unpaid taxes on filed
returns are accrued as receivables. Unbilled revenues for services provided between the last
billing date and the end of the year are estimated and accrued as receivables. Interest camed and
unpaid on investment securities is accrued and recorded as receivables for all funds. Receivables
are stated net of allowances for uncollectible amounts. Uncollectible amounts are estimated based
upon past collection experience.

32



TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEFTEMBER 30, 2006

j»  Inventories

Inventories are valued at average cost or market, whichever is less. Inventories of materials and
supplies are reported as expenditures/expenses when consumed, except that the Federal Grant
Fund reports expenditures for school lunch supplies using the purchases method.

k. Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for costs applicable to future accounting periods are recorded as
prepaid assets.

I. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements.

The Territory has established a capitalization policy to recognize capital assets as assets with
an initial, individual cost greater than the amount as set forth in the table below and an
estimated useful life in excess of two yvears. Such assets are recorded at historical costs or
estimated historical costs if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not
capitalized.

Land 5 0.00
Land improvements 100,000
Building and improvements 100,000
Machinery and equipment 20,000
Vehicles 0.00
Infrastructure 100,000

Property, plant, and equipment of the Territory is depreciated using the straight line method
over the following estimated useful lives:

Assels Years
Buildings 30-40
Improvements other than buildings 15-40
Infrastructure 2540
Vehicles 5-10
Equipment 5-15

m. Compensated Absences

[t 15 the policy of the Territory to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
benefits, which will be paid to the employees upon separation from service. Vacation leave is
fully vested when earned but accumulated vacation leave cannot exceed 60 days at the end of any
calendar year. Sick leave is vested when earned and the accumulation is not limited.
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Employees separated from service are compensated for unused accrued sick leave at the rate of
30% of sick leave in excess of 239 hours. Retiring employees with less than 30 vears of service
may apply accumulated unused sick leave for additional service credits.

The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the governmeni-
wide statements. The current portion of this debt is estimated based on historical trends. In the
fund financial statements, governmental funds report only the compensated absence liability
payable from expendable available financial resources, while the proprietary funds report the
liahility as it is incurred.

Income Tax Refunds Payahle

During the calendar year, the Termtory collects employee withholdings and taxpayer's payments
for individual and corporate income taxes. Taxpayers file returns by April 15 for the preceding
calendar year. At September 30, the Territory estimates the amount it owes taxpayers for
overpayments during the preceding nine months. This estimated payable is recorded as tax
refunds payable and a reduction of tax revenues.

Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues consist of the long-term portion of the Marine Railway and Army Reserve
leases that are applicable to future years, an amount representing prepaid corporate income taxes
to be offset against future years’ taxes and revenues for nonexchange transactions not received
within sixty days after the fiscal year.

. Long Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement
of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable unamortized issuance costs and the unamortized deferred
amounts from refunding issues,

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for
use for a specific purpose. The Temtory has the following reservations of fund balance:

1. Debt service represents net assets available to finance future debt service requirements.

2. Retirement System represents the employees’ retirement system net assets available to
finance future benefit obligations.

3.  Inventories represents the reservation of funds set aside for inventories which are not
considered current financing résources.

4.  Endowments and Land grant programs represent amounts held in trust in which only
earnings not principal may be expended.

5. Encumbrances represent outstanding purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
the expenditure of funds from prior year appropriations.
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Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund balance sheet includes the reconciliation between fund balances in the
governmental funds and net asseis reporied in the government-wide statements. These
adjustments reflect the changes necessary to report the governmental fund balances on the
economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. The Self-Insurance
Fund balances are allocated from the Internal Service Fund to the governmental activities. In
addition, capital assets and long-term debt are added to the governmental funds to compile the
long-term view of the governmental activities column,

A similar reconciliation is included on the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balances for the governmental funds. These adjustments reflect the transition from the
modified accrual accounting for governmental funds to the accrual basis of accounting for the
statement of activities. Capital outlay is replaced with depreciation expense. And, capital
lease revenues are added, while principal payments on long-term debt are eliminated from the
operaling costs,

Indirect Cost Allocation

The Territory utilizes an indirect cost allocation system to allocate costs incurred in the General
Fund that are indirect expenses of other funds. Reimbursements to the General Fund are recorded
as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as Interdepartmental revenues in the General
Fund,

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of the Financial Statements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in
the financial statements. Changes in these estimates and assumptions are considered reasonably
possible and may have a material impact on the financial statements.

2, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

Cash and cash equivalents held by various financial institutions for the Territory, except the
Retirement Fund its blended component unit, and its discretely presented component units was
£26,557,701. This consists of amounts insured by the FDIC of $200,000, collateralized amounts
of $26,347,701.
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b. Investments

Investments of the primary government are categorized as follows:
Primary Government

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10

Certificates of Deposit $ 2,461,370 $ 2,461,370 $ - $ - 3

U.S. Treasuries 185,678 185,678 - - =
U.S. Government Agencies 3,790,070 - 3,790,070 - -
Municipal Bonds 1,200,000 - 500,000 - 700,000
Mutual Funds 15,241,158 15,241,158 - - -
Total Investments $ 22,878,276 $ 17,888,206 b 4,290,070 $ - $ 700,000

Blended Component Unit

Retirement Fund:

The Board of Trustees of the Fund has the power and authority under territorial law to make all
decisions on the investment of Fund assets and the employment of professional investment agents.
Investment authority is not restricted by types of property or other investment options, but the law
does limit the amount of an individual investment that may be made in any one instrument or
security issued by a political subdivision, corporation or other entity. The law also provides
guidelines on the qualifications of investment agents that may be employed by the Fund.

In 2005, the Board of Trustees formally approved a Statement of Investment Policy, Guidelines
and Objectives, which substantially restructured the Fund’s investment portfolio and investment
managers providing services to the Fund. The new asset allocation targets are 50% domestic
equity, 20% international equity, 25% fixed income, and 5% real estate. As of September 30,
2006, all investments were held in mutual funds and real estate. Their allocation is as follows:

Fair Value Percentage
Domestic equity $ 94,175,934 48%
International equity 40,120,549 20%
Fixed income 48,312,209 24%
Loan - ASG 9,884,036 5%
Real Estate - Centennial Office Building 5,000,000 3%
Balance - September 30, 2006 $ 197,492,728 100%

The Fund pays investment fees either through direct payments to the investment manager or as a
deduction from investment returns.




TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEFTEMBER 30, 2006

3. RECEIVABLES
a. Capital Lease Receivable

Effective May 1, 1985 the Territory entered into a lease agreement whereby the Marine Railway
Facility was leased to an independent contractor for fifieen years plus three five year extensions.
The lease provided for minimum annual payments of $50,000 for the first five-years and is
renegotiable thereafter. Renegotiations occurred in 1997 and the minimum annual payments were
changed to $40,000. This lease was renewed on May 1, 2000, Lease payments may increase based
upon sales volume of the contractor and if sales volume is less than $750,000 annually, the
contractor may terminate the lease. An annual payment in the amount of $40,000 was received in
fiscal year 2006. The Temitory has recognized a lease receivable from the contractor amounting to
$264,289 with the same amount included as deferred revenue at September 30, 2006 which is the
present value of the lease at $40,000 annually to April 30, 2015, discounted at 6%.

b. Other Receivables

Other Receivables (excluding ASPA and ASCC) on the fund financial statements by account type
and source are as follows:

Receivable Allowance Balance

Taxes

General Fund § 21,720,269 § 12340289 § 9,379 980
Accounts Receivable

General Fund 3,535,178 3,319,606 215,572

Special Revenue Funds 19,987 15,000 4,987

Debt Service Fund 136,615 - 136,615

Capital Projects Funds 168,033 - 168.033

Enterprise Funds 1,485,296 1,045,776 439,520

Fiduciary Funds 451,699 - 451,699
Contributions Receivable

Fiduciary Funds 522,871 - 322,871
Due from U.S. Government

special Revenue Funds 16,887,704 480,756 16,406,248

Capital Project Funds 1,200,374 - 1,209,374
Total $ 46137026 § 17201427 § 28,935,599
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INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

A summary of interfund receivable and payable balances are as follows:
Due To/Thue From Other Funds is as follows:

Pnmary Government

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds:
Disaster Recovery
Enterprise Funds:

Airport

Internal Service Funds:
Workers Compensation

Due To/Due From
Receivable Payable

5 320,193 3 -

- 137,019

9,390 62,494

2 330,070

3 529,583 3 529,583

Due To'Due From Other Funds - Pooled Cash accounts are summarized as follows:

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects Funds
Debt Service Fund
Internal Service Funds
Miscellaneous Deposits

Operating Transfers In/'Out are as follows:

Due From Due To

] 6,920,595 § 3,740,287
- 6,442,779

- 477418

= 00

1,589,477 -
2,150,812 -

b3 10,660,884 § 10,660 884

38

. Ot OF Amount In To Purpose
General Fund g 082,176  Enterprise Fund - Airport Operating Subsidy
General Fund 89,442 Enterprise Fund - Industrial Park Operating Subsidy
General Fund 56,333  Grant Fund Hlegible Cost

Special Revenue Fund - Disaster Matching Grant Funds -
CGreneral Fund 111,000 Recovery FEMA
1,238,951
Capital Projects 80,313  Internal Services - Housing Capital Asset Purchases
Debt Service Fund 291,667  General Fund Bond payment - EOB
Total Transfers Out % 1.610,931
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2006 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land
Construction in process

Total capital assets
not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than

buildings
Vehicles
Equipment
Infrastructure

Totals capital asseis
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than

buildings
Vehicles
Equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets
being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital
assels, net

b

SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

$

Primary Government

Beginning Retirements / Ending

Balance Additions Transfers Balance
1,539,718 % - - 1,539,718
18,322,865 20,958,780 (8,445,008) 30,836,637
19,862,583 20,958,780 (8,445,008) 32,376,355
92,350,036 4,089 498 - 06,439,534
37,831,586 519,841 - 38,351,427
13,524,950 5,585,322 - 19,110,272
12,563,676 2,002,637 - 14,566,313
031,439 373 771,249 - 04,210,622
249,708,621 12,968,547 - 262,678,168
31,207,275 2,505,338 - 33,712,613
17,643,330 737,057 - 18,380,387
9.423,248 1,670,856 - 11,094,104
7,170,560 1,093,206 - 8,263,766
34 438,739 2,996,405 =: 37,435,144
99,883,152 9,002,862 - 108,886,014
149,826,469 3,965,685 - 153,792,154
169,689,052 5§ 24924465 § (8.445008) § 186,168,509
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Primary Government
Beginning Retirements/ Ending
Balance Additions Transfers Balance
Business-Type Activities:
Land and rights $ 1,871,894 % - § - 8 1,871,894
Land improvements 63,762,255 233,878 - 63,996,133
Buildings and structures 6,460,119 11,087,968 - 17,548,087
Machinery and equipment 2,860,768 1,695,071 - 4,555,839
Work in process 11,707,020 3,869,566 (12,430,425) 3,146,161
Totals at historical cost 86,662,056 16,886,483 (12,430,425) 91,118,114
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and structures 4.361,131 174,490 - 4,535,621
Machinery and equipment 1,179,170 211,301 - 1,390,471
Land improvements 21,400,349 2,640,755 - 24,041,104
Total accumulated
depreciation 26,940,650 3,026,546 - 29,967,196
Business-Type activities
capital assets, net 5 59721406 13,859,937 § (12,430425) % 61,150918

Depreciation expense was charged to the governmental functions as follows:

Economic development § 1,002,735
Education and culture 1,323,038
Health and welfare 474 589
Public safety 553,726
General Government 5,648,774
Total governmental
depreciation expense £ 9002862

6. LEASES

The Territory leases property for the Lava Lava Golf Course from various landowners. Annual
payments of $30,000 1o June 30, 2032 for a wotal of $1,500,000 were prepaid during the year ended
September 30, 1985 and are being amortized over the term of the lease. The unamortized balance at

September 30, 2006 was $772,504,
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7. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND)

The Retirement Fund is a cost sharing multiple employer contributory defined benefit retirement fund
which was established in 1971 and provides retirement annuities for the employees of the Temitory,
11s component units, American Samoa Power Authority, American Samoa Community College,
American Samoa Medical Center Authority - Lyndon B. Johnson Tropical Medical Center, and
American Samoa Telecommunications Authonity and its related entities, the Development Bank of
American Samoa and Feleti Barstow Public Library,

The Employees’ Retirement Fund issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. This report may be obtained by contacting:

American Samoa Government
Employees’ Retirement Fund
P.O. Box 2448
Pago Pago, AS 96799-2448

The Emplovees” Retirement Fund is presented on the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles as applicable o government entities,

a. Retiremeni Eligibility
The Fund’s retirement ehigibility provisions are as follows;

» MNormal retirement - Age 635 with five years of service or age 55 with 30 years of service
» Early retirement - Age 35 with ten years of service (reduced benefits)

The surviving spouse of an active member, who dies before retirement but afier attaining
eligibility for retirement, may receive either a refund of employee contributions with interest or a
life annuity equal to one-half the retirement annuity that would have been paid to the deceased
member. An additional lump sum death benefit of $2,500 to $10,000, based on vears of service, is
also payable to survivors of active members of the Fund. A lump sum death benefit of $1,500 is
pavable to survivors of retired members of the Fund.

b. Benefit Payments to Retired Members
The annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equals 2% of the average annual salary for
three consecutive years, multiplied by the number of years of service to a maximum of 30 years

(from 10% to 60% based upon years of service). The minimum annual benefit is $600.

The value of a member's individual account is pavable at the member's option in either a single
life annuity or a qualified joint and survivor annuity (actuarially reduced),

41



TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

¢. Terminated Emplovees

Any member terminated for any reason other than retirement is entitled to the return of all
employee contributions made plus interest at a rate of 5% per yvear. Refunds are made upon an
application request by the employee and acceptance of a refund terminates membership in the
Fund and forfeiture of any benefit,

d. Administrators of the Fund

The responsibility for proper administration of the Fund and the direction of its policies is vested
in & five-member appointed Board of Trustees.

e. Fund Membership

Virtually all full ime employees of the primary government, component units, the Development
Bank and Felet Barstow Public Library, other than contract specialists, are covered by the Fund.
Fund membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently

receiving benefits 1.466

Terminated vested employees not

receiving benefits 9
—L226

Active Employees:

Vested 2,188

Non-vested 2,615
4,803

I. Funding Status and Progress

The amount shown below as pension benefit obligation is a standardized disclosure measure of the
present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases. estimated
to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is the actuarial
present value of credited projected benefits and is intended to assess the funding status on a going
concern basis, and to assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when
due. The measure is independent of the actuarial funding method used to determine contributions
to the Fund.

The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation at October 1, 2005.
Significant actuarial assumptions used include a rate of return on the investment of present and
future assets of 8.0% per year compounded annually, and projected salary increases of 5.75% (4%
inflation in¢rease) per year, compounded annually until retirement. [t is assumed that there will be
no post retirement benefit increases.
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Contributions

The primary government, component units, the Development Bank and Feleti Barstow Public
Library have agreed to contribute such amounts as provided by the Territory's Code Section
7.1433 1o the Fund each year on an actuarially determined basis and as approved by the Board,
The contribution rate 15 8.0% of employees' regular eamings; excluding overtime.

Each member of the Retirement Fund contributes 3% of eamnings and earns interest at 5%
compounded annually. Employee contributions are made through payroll deductions. Employee
contributions and the related interest earned are refunded in full to members whose employment is
terminated for any reason other than retirement, and as a death benefit to the survivors of deceased
employees not yet eligible for retirement. Employees are fully vested in the emplover portion,
payable as a retirement annuity, after ten years of participation in the Fund.

Contributions totaling $9,196,124 ($6,567,095 from sponsors and $2,629,029 from employees)
were made in accordance with actuanally determined contribution requirements determined
through an annual actuarial valuation. The employer contribution consists of $6.541,109 of
normal cost and 30 amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability, which has been
reduced to $0. All employee contributions are used to reduce the normal cost Lability before the
employer's required contribution rate is calculated. Employer and employee contributions as a
percentage of covered payroll are 8.6% and 3.5%. respectively.

The Fund utilizes the frozen entry age normal actuarial cost method and the level dollar of
projected payroll for funding requirements. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is amortized
over 30 vears (closed basis).

Employer Contributions

Historical trend information designed to provide information about the Fund's progress
made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due follows:

Percentage
Required of Required
Employer Contributions
Fiscal Year Ending: Coniributions Contributed
September 30,2006  § 6,341,109 100.4%
September 30, 2005 5,983,779 108.9
September 30, 2004 6,493,413 94.8
September 30, 2003 4,828,239 111.1
September 30, 2002 4,880,833 100.8
September 30, 2001 3,800,238 125.0

Contributions were made in accordance with actuarially determined contribution requirements.
The employer contribution made in 2006 totaled $6,567,096.
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

a. Changes during the year ended and balances as of September 30, 2006, including the current portions

of the Territory's long-term obligations were as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
General obligation refunding
Bonds, series 2000 £ 6515000 % - § 2085000 § 4430000 § 2,150,000
Loan payable FEMA 2.545.821 84,297 - 2,630,118 2,630,118
Department of Intenor 17,949,190 1.060,640 890,288 18,119,542 1,000,000
Claims and Judgments 3,500,000 4,350,000 - 7.850,000 400,000
Workers Compensation Claims 599,420 - 66,865 532,555 100,000
Landfill closure and
Post-closure liability 287.658 - - 287,658 -
Compensated Absences 12,663,702 6,838,804 5,680,154 13,822,352 5,700,000
America Samoa Government
Retirement Fund - LBJ Loan - 10,000,000 115,964 9,884,036 320,988
5 44.060,791 % 22333741 § BBIB2T1 § 57556261 § 12,301,106

Iv. Bonds
Prima [H £

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2000

On July 1, 2000 the Termitory issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2000 in the
amount of $18,040,000 at an interest rate of 5.86%. Proceeds of the Bonds were used to refund the

various outstanding obligations at that date,

Annual debt service requirements for the bonds are as follows:

Year Ending

September 30 Principal Interest Total
2007 3 2,150,000 § 265,800 § 2,415,800
2008 2,280,000 136,800 2416800

Total 3 4,430,000 3 402,600 § 4,832,600
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¢. Loan Pavable - FEMA

YE 1

The Territory received proceeds of special Community disaster loans from FEMA during fiscal
years 1993 and 1994 totaling $10,179,089. There is a provisien in the FEMA regulations that
permits FEMA to cancel all or a portion of this loan.

FEMA had cancelled 58,638,009 of principal and $3,227,779 of interest on these notes in May

2000. The Territory expects the remaining amounts of this note plus interest 1o be cancelled in
subsequent years.

The annual debt service requirements for the notes are as follow:
Unpaid

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2006 $ 1541080 § 1089038 § 2,630,118

d. Department of Interior Loan

In 1999 Congress passed legislation that authonizes the Secretary of the Interior to lend the
Territory up to 518,600,000 at an approximately 5.4% interest rate in exchange for an irrevocable
assignment of the payments due to the Territory under the Master Settlement Agreement with
certain tobacco companies for the next 26 vears. The legislation requires the Territory to pledge its
full faith and credit to repay the loan, should the payments from the Tobacco Settlement be
insufficient. The Territory required this pledge to be junior with respect to the Pledged Taxes and
Revenues for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2000, Proceeds of 514,300,000

from the loan were used to pay creditors of the Territory and additional borrowings of $4,300,000
was used to plan and implement a fiscal reform program.

Principal and interest payments are funded from the periodic receipt of The Territory’s share of the
Tobacco Settlement.

e. American Samoa Government Retirement Fund - LBJ Loan

In April, 2006 the Territory of American Samoa entered into a loan agreement with the American
Samoa Government Retirement Fund to borrow 510 million. The purpose of the loan is to pay the
debts and obligations of the Amercan Samoa Medical Center Authority - Lyndon B. Johnson
Tropical Medical Center. Interest on the loan is 8% per annum, with equal quarterly pavments of
interest on the principal amount outstanding of the last day of each quarter. The loan will be paid
with funds received from the American Samoa Telecommunications Authority as a payment in lieu
of taxes,
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The loan has been secured by a security interest in the real property and all improvements of the
Tafuna Industrial Park as well as the assignment of rents and leases in the Tafuna Industrial Park.
The loan is to be repaid in 16 1/3 years terminating on May 1, 2022,

Annual debt service requirements for this loan are as follows:

Year Ending
September 30 Principal Interest Total
2007 3 320,988 § 779012 § 1,100,000
2008 345479 754,521 1,100,000
2009 176,304 723,696 1,100,000
2010 407,537 692,463 1,100,000
2011 441,362 658,638 1,100,000
2012-2016 2,817,308 2,682,692 5,500,000
2017-2021 4,200,452 1,299,548 5,500,000
2022 974,606 319,536 1,014,142

5 9,884,036 § 7,630,106 § 17,514,142
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9. MAJOR COMPONENT UNIT INFORMATION

Adsetss
Cash, investments and oiber assels
[hue from primary government
Che frem other flands
Capital Assets, net

Total Azseis

Linbilities:
Accounts payable and ather curnent
liabilities
e 1o otheer funds
Advances from Oileer Fusds
Loag-tenn |iabiliees

Total Linbilities
Ml asseis:
Imwesied in capital, net of related debit
Resiricied
Uneesizicied

Total Mei Assets

ASPA ASCC LBJ ASTCA Totals
5 13455706 § T339.247 5 Ga61644 5 ILI5%837 & 42 416,504
1306505 - - - 1.3 16,5405
206,003 - - - 206,003
91,983,283 3,919,068 0, 534 384 24,002 626 130,839,361
106,962 027 11,248,315 20,016,028 36,242 463 174,478 833
13,987 K18 2256410 1271508 2, TRT.2TS 22302 811
= - 37426 . STA26
1,788,583 AT0. 00 6 3B003T 0,647, 680
16,776,400 2735470 G708, 771 2, TT.2TS J20.917
ER.H26,267 1919068 10,554,384 103259, 719
703,735 4,546,424 - . 3,250,159
55,624 57553 (247127 31455180 33.921,038
5 0,183 636 5 E32TBAS 5 10,307,257 5 I3 455188 % 142 4AT0.9 16
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General revenues:

SEFTEMBER 30, 2006
Program Hevenues
Crperating Gramls  Capital Granls
Charges for and and
Functions/Frograms Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
American Samoa Power Aothority
CGeenernl & Adminisirative $ 4506822 8 - & - % -
Operaticns 43,220,569 40667 ATE 1307, 583 3234004
Imterest an long term debt 353,089 - - -
Diepreciation 8,083,711 . . .
Total - ASPA 56,174,011 48667478 1,307,583 3,234,004
American Samoa Comm, College
Genernl & Adminisirative 2845595 - - -
Instructional 6,845,151 5.0%1,133 234,363 -
Imierest on long term debi - . - .
Deepreciation 3451463 - - -
Total = ASCC 10.035.711 0 284,363 -
American Samoa Medical Cenler
Amthority (LBJ)
Genernl & Adminisirative 2,542 684 - - 1211421
Climical and Nursing A0, 6R0,0¢0 15,590,275 bl
Uperabions i, 5E5 K3 97 TH4 =
Inierest on long term dehi - - .
[Depreciation 1,050,884 =
Taotal - LEJ 19,263,475 14,054,059 1.211.421
American Samoa Telecommuabtation
Aumthority
General & Admmistrative 1,989,657 - . -
Cpemtions 10,591,018 18,090,783 -
Inberest on boag-term delbt . . . -
Depreciation 1.243.759 - . .
Toaal - ASTCA 17,824 434 18090, 783 . =
Total Component Linits 5 113,297,631 § BSOM3A52 05 L3SILME 5§ 4445427
_—

Paymenis from Territory of American Samos

Crrants, embilloments amd contnbulions

miM restricted 1o specific progrms
Oiber gerseral revenues

Tatal general revenues
Changes in net asseis
Met asseis, beginning of year

Met asspts, end of year

48



TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

ASPA ASCC LB ASTCA Toul

5 (4316622) $ - % - 8 - % (4,516,622)

9,958 498 - . . 9,988 498
(353,089 = . . (353,089)
(8,083,731} - - = (8,083, 731)
(2,964,944} - . - (064944}
. (2,845,395) - - (2,845,395)

- (1,490.656) - = [ 1,499 656)

. {345.165) ‘ - (345.165)

- (4,690,216 . . (4,690,216}

s - (1,731,.267) : i1,731,267)

- - [ 7.083,745) . (7.083,743)

. . (4,092,069) . (4,092 ,099)

- - (1.050.884) . (1,050,884}

. (13,957,995 . {13,957,595)

i . 2 (3,989,657 (3,989,657}

. - . 7499, 765 7,499,768

. . . (3,243,759) (3,243,759}

- - . 266,349 266,349

b {21,346, 8061

- 4211140 13,793,027 . L8, e, 027

- - 1,734,376 - 1, 73437

ALATE 155 (r 10,026,433 G, (A6 1,256, 112

41,470 4,370,004 25,553 036 B9, 0% 30,034,505

{2.923,465) {320,12Z) I 1,395,841 335445 BT 604

93, 109,091 842 06T (1,208 584) I 109743 133,783,217
= === SEEESS

§ 90085636 2§ BIIR4S O F O [0M07ST F MIAMSIER 0 5 (42470916
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

10. EXPENDTURES EXCEEDING APPROPRIATIONS
Actual expenditures exceeded appropriations for certain funds and departments
Departments and Special Programs within the General Fund, which exceeded budget are as follows:

General Government Budget (verrun
Legislature 5 172,396
Human Resources 5,177
Local Government 6,071
Legal Affairs 96,116
Election Office 63,271
EOB New Air Conditioning Unit 36,092
Fiscal Reform Costs 623,173
Financial Management System 246,394
Immigration System Upgrade 37,224
Insurance Premium 526,205
Contingency Fund 4 898
EOB Electric and Water Bill 44,303
Claims and Damages 245484
Governor's House Renovation 982,088
Manu'a Aircraft 122277
Territorial Administration on Aging 670
Human and Social Services 359,112
Territorial Office of Fiscal Reform 2,519
Political Status Study Commission 243,194
Misc. Accts - None departmental 986,881

Education and Culture
Department of Education 5,897
DOE Facility Renovation 332,366
Arts Council 33,598
DOE Library Improvement 248 897
Teacher Scholarship Program (BA/BS) 94,026
American Samoa Community College Subsidy 1,363,000
Feleti Barstow Public Library 2,500
DOE Teacher Scholarship: Post Graduate 46,857
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPFTEMBER 30, 2006

Economic Development

Port Administration 34,394

Agriculture 187,959

M.V, Sili Operation 200,494

Manu'a [sland Transportation 05,762
Health and Recreation

Sports Complex (Bav., GC, Baseball, Stadm) 34,846

Public Health Nurse's Training 66,368
Public Safety

Public Safety 111,653

Judiciary 322,644

Public Defender 6,020
Public Works

Road Maintenance 284,492

Public Street Lights 921

Board of Tradesman 115
Transfers Out

Public Assistance 111,000

Grant Fund 56,333

Industrial Park 89,442

Airport 982,176
Total § 9515305

The disbursement of funds for these expenditures that resulted in actual expenditures in excess of
authorized amounts was released without proper appropriation.

11. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INSURANCE
It is the policy of the Territory to cover the risk of losses 1o which it may be exposed through risk

management activities. In general, the Temitory is self-insured for health care claims and tort
liability.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

a. Health Care

Health care coverage is provided for all residents. To receive services, residents present their
American Samoa Government Health Card along with a nominal payment at the time of service.
The Territory assumes fiscal responsibility for authorized referrals to off-island medical care
providers as well as providing care to patients at the Amencan Samoa Medical Center Authonty -
Lyndon B. Johnson Tropical Medical Center in America Samoa.

The required disclosure and accrual of expenses incurred in subsequent years from medical
conditions existing at September 30, 2006 are not recorded due to the lack of adequate
information.

b. Property

The Territory has a property damage insurance policy with a commercial insurance company.
Any physical loss or damage caused by all penls, o all tangible property of every description (not
expressly excluded by the Policy), which is in the Territory and is owned or held by the Territory
jointly, or in trust or on commission or for which the Territory is responsible or has assumed
responsibility, is subject to:

s %25 million primary policy for all of the Territory's property with a deductible of $3,000,000
for earthquake and hurricane, $1,000,000 for flood and $250.000 deductible for all perils
except hurricane

¢, Other Insurance

ASPA, ASTCA and the Petroleum Cooperative maintain separate Property and automobile
liabality insurance.

id. Workers Compensation

Effective October 1, 2001 the Temitory elected to become self-insured for its Workers
Compensation liability to pay compensation as defined under the Workers Compensation Act.
The administration of this self-insurance arrangement 15 handled by the Terrtory through its
internal service fund, the Workers Compensation Fund. All funds, agencies and component units
of the Territory participate in the Workers Compensation Fund. Each unit contributes to the fund
a “premium” amount calculated using the prior experience of the fund as a whole.

Claims liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that
loss can be reasomably estimated, typically after a decision has been rendered by and
Administrative Law Judge. Liabilities for incurred losses settled by fixed and reasonably
determinable payments over a long prior of time are reported at their present value using an
expected future invesiment yield based on the current investment yield of 3.0%. At September 30,
2006, these liabilities are reported at their present value of $532,555. Claims liabilities and
investments designated for payment of those claims are reported in the governmental activities
column of the government-wide statement of net assets.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEFTEMBER 30, 2006

Fublic Liability

The Territory is self-insured for purposes of public liability, The Territory’s Tort Liability Act
allows the government to be sued for personal injury or death caused by the negligent or wrongful
acl or omission of any employee of the government while acting within the scope of hisher
employment. The Territory continues to satisfy its obligations under the Government Tort
Liability Act with an amount budgeted by the FONO cach fiscal year. The Attorney General’s
Office 1s responsible for the acquisition and administration of any self-insurance plans and
programs adopted for use by the Territory.

The self-insurance loss liability for risk management of $400,000 represents an estimate of

amounts to be paid from currently expendable available financial resources. The remaining
liability is estimated at $7,450,000.

SOLID WASTE LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE COSTS

The Futiga Landfill has been operated for the past thirty years. During the second quarter of fiscal
year 1995 the Territory transferred the landfill 1o ASPA. Upon transfer, the landfill was
substantially filled and is currently considered full although still in use. ASPA is constructing a
new landfill on leased land adjacent to the current landfill.

The Territory is required to recognize a portion of the closure and post-closure care costs in each
operating period even though actual pay-outs will not occur until the landfill is closed. The

amount to be recognized each operating period is based upon the landfill capacity used as of the
balance sheet date. As of September 30, 2006 the Territory has recorded a liability of $287,658.

Estimated costs of the closure and post-closure care are subject to changes such as the effects of
inflation, revision of laws and other variables,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

. Litigation

The Territory is party to numerous pending or threatened lawsuits, under which it may be required
to pay certain amounts upon final disposition of these matters. Generally the Territory is self-
insured, except for property damage and fidelity bond coverage.

With respect to legal matters expected to be settled subsequent to September 30, 2006, the office
of the Attorney General has estimated the amount of liability determined, as of September 30,
20096, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Mo. 5, as probable. As
indicated above, the Territory has recorded a liability for judgments and claims in the amount of
$7,850,000.

(irants

Under the terms of Federal grants, periodic audits are required and certain costs may be questioned
as nol being appropriate expenditures under the terms of the grants. Audits may lead to
reimbursement to the grantor agencies. The Territory has recorded liabilities for all audit reports
that are expected to lead to disallowed costs. The Territory has not recorded an allowance in the
September 30, 2006 financial statements for any amounts that cannot be estimated at this time.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPFTEMBER 30, 2006
e. Commitments

Outstanding commitments are comprised of the following:

Expended
Through Committed at
Project September 30, September 30,
Authorization 2006 2006 —

Airport improvements b 13,107,302 5 2,796,223 5 10,311,079
Educational facilities 6,593,379 3,395,149 3,198,230
Highways and ports 2,956,891 1,599,710 1,357,181
Total b 22,657,572 s 7,791,082 5 14,866,490

In addition to the amount of $14,866,490 shown above as committed, $9.281.253 is encumbered
for various other capital projects, bringing total commitments 1o 324,147,743, These projects will
be funded primarily by grants. The Termitory has additional unexpended contracts and open
purchase orders for governmental activities amounting to $6,455,138 and, proprictary fund
activities amounting to 364,451 which will be honored and become peneral governmental
expenditures and proprietary fund expenses in subsequent fiscal years.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In June 2007 the FONO passed legislation authonzing The Territory of American Samoa to enter
into a loan agreement with the American Samoa Government Retirement Fund to borrow up to
$20,000,000. The purpose of the loan 15 to fund various projects, the majority of which are capital
projects, as set forth in the legislation and any addition projects approved by the FONO. The
legislation limits the term to ten years stipulates a 7.5% interest rate. The loan will be paid with
funds received from certain pledged revenues (12.5% of excise tax collected on aleohol beverages
as imposed purswant to A.S.C.A., Section 11.1102(a)}1}BY; 40% of the excise tax collected on
beer and malt extract as imposed pursuant to AS.C.A., Section 11.1102{(a)(1)A); all of the
revenues collected from the Customs Entry Application Forms Processing fee imposed pursuant to
AS.CA, Section 27.104(a)5); and 20% of the excise tax collected on tobacco products as
imposed pursuant to A.5.C.A, Section 11.1102{a)1)(C).

The amount The Territory may draw down is limited 10 95% of the amount that is estimated to be
able to be amortized by the pledged revenues over the ten year term of the loan. The Territory is
finalizing a loan agreement in the amount of $16 million which is the maximum amount currently
authorized based on estimated pledged revenues.

The Note will be a general obligation of The Territory. The full faith, credit and taxing powers of
The Temtory will be pledged to the payvment of principal and interest.
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TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

Hevenues:
Taxes
Licenses and Permils
Intergavernmenidal
Chasges for Services
Fines and Foes
Interdeparimental
Miscelleneous Revenue

Total revemwes

Expenditures:
Ciemona] Cavermmsent
Puhiic Safely
Heahh and Recrestion
Public Waorks
Edwcation amd Culiere
Econamic Development

Taotal expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues aver
eupendilures

Crihver fimancing somrces (inses);
Loan Proceeds
Transfers In
Transfers Ot

Tuetal other finapcing sources [uses)

Change in fund balances
Fund balances, October 1, 2005

Fund balances, September M, 2006

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Budgeted Amours
Wariance with Final
Budpet Positive
Origimal Final Acctual {Megative)

5 82024000 % 56,264,000 % 55,786,185 % (477.815)
OO, DO 1, 00, EXH 1,026,761 i, 761

B 300, 00} 8,300, 00:0 LR N 664, (HID
3,545,000 3,545,000 4,410,783 465,783

1, 200, 00 1,200, Colb 2176811 1.076,831
4,750,504 4,750,500 528004 467604
75,00} 75,000 486,817 JA11L817
72,194,500 75,534,500 Bl 165481 5634981
2450 500 26, 8, 000 30,384,401 (X,6T6.400)
T0E5.500 1567000 7,508,028 {d01.028)
3276004 3412000 16559573 (8257575
5,850,000 5,948,000 &, 820 [ 156.821)
26,683,500 27,513,500 28.563.380 {1,045 BR0)
4,286,000 4, 3B, CHHO 4,752 866 [ 346 B1845)
T2,194,500 75,534,500 B9,443.07 1 {13508 571}
- - i%,273,590) {8,271.550)

- - IR RN 1101, OoCH, O

= - 231,667 91,667
= e (L2385 951) i(1,238.950)

= S052 TG 2052716

5 . T19.126 179,126

EREER 483,508 9483 898 .

§ Q4EIHEIE  § G483 80 % 263024 8§ TG

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

a2



TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SPECIAL REVENUE - FEDERAL GRANTS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Budgeted Amoamis
Varlance with
Firal Buadper
Positve
Ciriginal Final Aghaal :H:Enl'-f.]
Resenues:
Inierpmvermenial g RlB0Ds00 8§ ElLS00500 § GreeE0%4 5 15764554
Chasges foe Senvices x A h T
Miscellansous Kivesies - - 1107431 1107431
Total revenues B 1500400 1, SH) 9K, 771 685 16,873,185
Expenditmres:
General Govermanesa 3044000 3,044, 00 12,575,886 {9,435,886)
Public Safety f, 101,000 5,0 | 00 L48.00% 1953012
Heslih and Keorealin 24 2233 500 24,333 400 21,007,744 3,220,754
Pubbic Warks - - 12,80, 185 {12,B02, | BE)
Education and Cultune A2 500,500 A2 B0 S0 42 119 487 66200
Ecencmic Development. 5. 340 50 5. 240 500 5847 651 (50T, 130)
Totsl expendimres B 1. 500 B S S0 QEBI00IE {16,929 510K}
Exeess (defehemey) of reveaes over expeaditar = = (56,333} (36.333)
(ther Mnancing seuroes {use:
Transfers Out - - - -
Transfers In - - 6,331 36,333
Total otlser fnancing sourges {uses) - = 36,333 36,333
Chanpe in fand balances before inventory sd]ustment . = =
Change i Reserve for Invenicry - - (453,744} (453, 7441
Fund balamces, October 1, 2005 1. 205 955 I 200 955 1,254 055
Fumi balsmees, Seplember 30, 204 5 1,299 958 5 I 2949 955 % RS2 8 ld-.'-I.T-HE
_ D L

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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STATISTICAL SECTION

The statistical section presentations include comparisons of
economic and social characteristics and financial trends over a
ten-year period. The statistical data presented is intended to
provide report users with a broader understanding of the
environment in which the Territory operates.
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Table &

TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
PUBLIC UTILITY STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

ASPA (a)
TOTAL KWH GOVERNMENTAL WATER (b ) NUMBER OF
SOLD TOTAL GALLONS SOLD TELEPHONES (¢ )
YEAR {in thousands) (in millions)
1997 126,140 2,120 10,0
[998 128,178 2,183 11,89
15 137,834 1,163 1,919
2006 146,444 n'a 10,252
2001 148,109 2277 12,587
202 156,204 n'a 14,053
2003 165,569 n'a 10,713
20 158,104 ' 10,354
2005 188,975 2,241 10,663
2006 (1) 188,975 2,241 10,663
Sources:

{2} American Samoa Power Authority
(b} American Samon Power Authority
{c) American Samoa Telecommunications Authority

{ 1} Figures for 2006 were not available. 2005 figures were substituted.



TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA
PETROLEUM CONSUMPTION (in US Gallons)

Last Seven Fiscal Years

Tahle 9

_YEAR DIESEL JET FLUEL GASOLINE TOTAL
201 A2 To4, 188 5880049 5,876,939 54 461,176
20002 J6,&dd, 009 5,160,665 5,005 962 58,000,636
2003 41,963,075 4411216 5,956,555 52 330,846
2004 36,000,841 1,810,608 6,323 885 46, L6 354
2005 19406 481 2 965,592 B, 189216 48,650,289
200 34,822 068 2,902 %&b 5,929 238 43,654 262

Souiree:

American Samoa Office of Petroleun Management
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Table 10

TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA

ECONOMIC STATISTICS
Lasi Ten Fiscal Years
PORT ACTIVITY TOTAL BUILDING PEERMITS
TOURIST {in millions) REGISTERED NUMBER EST. VALUE
YEAR ARRIVALS  IMPORTS EXFORTS BUSIMESSES IESUEII' Lin Ih-uunn:h-!

1997 4.504 328.6 42319 2455 578 19222
199% 5,680 498.2 4148 2044 592 16,033
1999 863 452,46 3451 2131 T15 15,209
2000 6,333 305.9 1463 2,228 RS 12,801
2001 6 535 n'a T n'a n'a nwa
2002 n'a 225 J8H nfa 506 21,088
2003 na 324.7 4595 2875 LY | 28 908
2004 n'a 308 8 4454 3060 1,336 34,137
2005 7027 520.7 17338 2,983 202 14,500
2006 7. 762 5192 4385 n'a Ge2 26,500

BOUrees;

Economic Development & Planning Office Statistical Yearbook 20003 & 20404
Economic Development & Planning Office Sintistical Yearbook 20035

Economic Development & Planning Office Statistical Yearbook 2006 not vet published
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Table 11

TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

AMERICAN SAMODA
SCHOOL ENROLLMENT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
YEAR I"ﬂ'FU[_.-ATIﬂN (13 PUBLIC PRIVATE TOTAL  FALL ENROLLMENT

1997 59 600 14, 805 X 668 17,473 1,032
1998 1,200 14,780 2370 17,150 1,062
1999 G2, 90 15,507 2,704 18,211 1,155
2000 57,291 15,657 2826 18,483 956

2001 n'n n'i wa n'a 1,178
2002 n'n nn na n'n ma

2003 G2 S0 15,947 3,050 18,997 L
2004 e, 100 ' n'a n'a 1,550
2003 65, 500 15,957 3,066 19,023 1,601
2006 &0, 900 16,548 2,980 19,528 1,607

Sources:

Economic Development & Planning Office Statistical Yearbook 2003

Economic Development & Planning Office Statistical Yearbook 2003 & 2004
Economic Development & Planning Office Statistical Yearbook 2005

Economic Development & Planning Office Statistical Yearbook 2006 not vet published

{1} The median age for the Territory is 21 wears, compared to abowt 33 for the US,
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Table 12

TERRITORY OF AMERICAN SAMOA

Miscellanecous Statistics

Fiscal Year 2006
—

Distance from:

Samoa T3 miles

Hawaii 2 700 miles

Mew Fealand 2300 miles
Longitude 168 - 173 degrees West
Latitude 14 degrees South
Land area in Acres 48,767
Developed land nrea in Acres TEL]

Steep slope / virually inaccessible percentage Bi%s
Land area in square miles Té.1
Toral islands 7
Main isband Tutwila land area in square miles 54
Total land area registered with the Territorial Registrar (2003} in acres T.470

Land designated as Government owned 1651 2%

Land designated as Commumal or Native 2056 2%

Land individually owned 1933 25%

Land registéred as Freehold Owners 1018 13%

Land registered as Church Land 1013 13%
Average Temperafure:

Maximem mean E6.7

Minimum mean 785
Annual relative humidity percent:

Saximum mean T

Minimum mean 75
20035 precipitation in inches 160.05
2004 precipitstion in inches 150.1
Percentage of Population with Education:

D¥id not finish High School 3%

High School Graduate 39%

Some College 13%

Agsociate Degree T

Bachelor's Degree %

Ciraduate or Professional Degree 1%

Source:
Economic Development and Planning Office
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